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          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Good morning

          3  everyone.  Welcome to today's hearing on Civil

          4  Service and Labor.  My name is Joe Addabbo, I have

          5  the privilege of Chairing this Committee and I

          6  welcome you all here on this bright early Friday

          7  morning.

          8                 Today the Civil Service and Labor

          9  Committee will be conducting a hearing to review the

         10  Department of Citywide Administrative Services,

         11  known as DCAS, the Annual Report regarding Civil

         12  Service eligible lists, Civil Service exams,

         13  provisional appointments and promotions.  The report

         14  is created by DCAS pursuant to a local law that was

         15  established in 2004, as a result of a hearing by

         16  this Committee in May of 2004.  DCAS is responsible

         17  for administering exams, creating eligible lists,

         18  and establishing promotional lists amongst other

         19  important Citywide duties and I'll just take this

         20  moment to say that I believe that DCAS is one of the

         21  more important City agencies, we just don't know it.

         22                 The intent of the local law and

         23  ultimately of the report was to create a checks-

         24  and- balances among City agencies and their

         25  adherence to the one- in- three rule and the list.
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          2  We find that at times there are agencies that do not

          3  adhere to the rule, nor the list, and actually do

          4  hire provisional employees who never have taken or

          5  passed the civil service examination.  These

          6  provisionals stay on for a number of years.

          7                 The report, which is delivered to the

          8  Mayor, Comptroller, Public Advocate, and Speaker by

          9  June 1 of each year, includes the dates eligible

         10  lists were created, the numbers of persons appointed

         11  or promoted from these lists, the numbers of persons

         12  appointed or promoted on a provisional basis, the

         13  persons considered and not selected, the persons

         14  removed from the list and a number of persons

         15  restored to the list amongst other information.

         16  Today's hearing will be the third oversight hearing

         17  since the first report was issued in 2005.

         18                 I want to thank at this point the

         19  people who have worked on this hearing today.  To my

         20  left here is our Legal Counsel Elisa Chae.  I like

         21  to thank Jeff Gottlieb, my Legislative Aide, the

         22  Sergeant-at-Arms who are here with us today, and I

         23  want to welcome back a person who was on one of my

         24  previous Committees, representing the Mayor today,

         25  Mr. Al Mullen.  Thank you Al for being here on
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          2  behalf of the Mayor's Administration.

          3                 I will introduce my colleagues as

          4  they come along today and they stagger in, and of

          5  course I want to thank DCAS for their efforts with

          6  regards to this report and the time and effort they

          7  put in.

          8                 Our first panel is from DCAS.  We

          9  have Mitch, Mitch I'm sorry I always do this,

         10  Paluszek, right, Deputy General Counsel for DCAS and

         11  Stephen Dobrowsky, Deputy Assistant Commissioner,

         12  Division of Citywide Personnel Services for DCAS.

         13  Steve and Mitch I really appreciate it again having

         14  you back here for this hearing. Please give your

         15  testimony.

         16                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         17  DOBROWSKY:  Good morning Chairman Addabbo and

         18  Members of the Committee on Civil Service and Labor.

         19  I am Stephen Dobrowsky, Deputy Assistant

         20  Commissioner in the Division of Citywide Personnel

         21  Services at the Department of Citywide

         22  Administrative Services, also known as DCAS. I am

         23  joined by my colleague Mitchell Paluszek, Deputy

         24  General Counsel for Personnel Legal Matters at DCAS.

         25  It is my pleasure to be here again and I thank you
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          2  for this opportunity to provide the Committee with a

          3  review of the annual report we generated pursuant to

          4  Local Law 50 of 2004.

          5                 Earlier this month, DCAS submitted

          6  this annual report to the Mayor, Comptroller, Public

          7  Advocate and Speaker of the City Council.  In this

          8  year's report, we also submitted a new supplemental

          9  analysis to summarize our findings.  The report

         10  contains information regarding the civil service

         11  eligible lists established during calendar year 2006

         12  and the use of eligible lists by agencies.  As

         13  detailed in Section 12- 206 of the New York City

         14  Administrative Code, the law specifically requires

         15  seven sets of statistics.  I will now explain the

         16  components of the law and our major findings.

         17                 Pursuant to the first two subsections

         18  of Administrative Code Section 12- 206, DCAS must

         19  report information regarding each eligible list

         20  established during 2006, and the dates such lists

         21  were established.  During 2006, 63 open- competitive

         22  eligible lists were established, and 166 agency and

         23  division promotion lists were established.

         24                 The next subsection of Administrative

         25  Code Section 12- 206 governs information regarding
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          2  the number of persons appointed or promoted from

          3  each eligible list and the agencies to which those

          4  appointments or promotions were made.  During 2006,

          5  there were a total of 13,467 such appoints and

          6  promotions made by 44 different agencies.

          7                 The report also includes information

          8  regarding the number of persons appointed or

          9  promoted on a provisional basis during the reporting

         10  year and the agencies to which such appointments

         11  were made, as required by Administrative Code

         12  Section 12- 206, subsection (b)(4).  During 2006,

         13  there were 7,872 provisional appointments and 2,132

         14  provisional promotions, in total 10,004 provisional

         15  actions.

         16                 As specified in Administrative Code

         17  Section 12- 206, subsection (b)(5), DCAS next

         18  reports information regarding the number of persons

         19  who were considered and not selected, also known as

         20  being CNS'ed, three times from promotion lists and

         21  agency specific open competitive lists during the

         22  reporting year. Because, however, the three

         23  considerations that a candidate may receive while on

         24  such lists do not necessarily occur within one

         25  calendar year, the report also includes those
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          2  persons who were CNS'ed for a third and last time in

          3  2006.  Using these parameters, 1,169 candidates were

          4  CNS'ed for a third time during 2006.

          5                 Administrative Code Section 12- 206,

          6  subsection (b)(6), requires that the report include

          7  information regarding the number of persons removed

          8  from eligible and promotion lists and the reasons

          9  reported to DCAS for such removals.  We include both

         10  temporary and permanent removals in this report.

         11  Temporary removals sometimes referred to as offside

         12  actions, may occur for a variety of reasons,

         13  including failure to report for an interview,

         14  failure to report for a medical or physical test

         15  declination of an appointment, or failure to report

         16  to work after appointment.  Upon request, a

         17  candidate can automatically have his or her name

         18  restored to the eligible list three times after

         19  temporary removals. Permanent removal from an

         20  eligible list occurs after a fourth offside action.

         21  The report shows a total of 19,691 removal actions

         22  during 2006, 83 permanent removal actions and 19,608

         23  temporary removal actions.

         24                 Finally, Administrative Code Section

         25  12- 206, subsection (b)(7), requires that the report
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          2  include information regarding the number of persons

          3  restored to eligible lists and the number of persons

          4  restored to promotion lists after having been

          5  removed.  In 2006, there were 103 instances where

          6  individuals who were CNS'ed three times were

          7  restored to a list at the request of an agency, and

          8  there were 2,873 instances where persons temporarily

          9  removed from lists were subsequently restored.  I

         10  would remind the Council that because a person may

         11  be restored to a list more than once during a year,

         12  this statistic reflects the total number of

         13  restoration actions in the reporting year, and not

         14  the exact number of individuals restored to eligible

         15  lists.

         16                 Thank you again for this opportunity

         17  to discuss DCAS's annual report on civil service

         18  eligible lists, examinations, and provisional

         19  appointments and promotions, as created by Local Law

         20  50 of 2004.  I would be happy to answer any

         21  questions you might have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Gentlemen,

         23  thank you very much for your testimony.

         24                 At this point I want to welcome a

         25  colleague of mine, and Member of this Committee,
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          2  Council Member Melissa Mark Viverito. Thank you very

          3  much and good morning.

          4                 Gentlemen, my questions will range

          5  from the general to the specific and first thing

          6  again let me thank you for your efforts on the

          7  report, again I'm hopeful that it's a useful report

          8  as we go forward and just again looking at these

          9  agencies and our workforce throughout the City and

         10  we want the most qualified workforce in the City so

         11  hopefully this report helps us toward that end.

         12                 I want to thank you also for the

         13  supplemental analysis that now is accompanying the

         14  report.  Again, that's a request that we had made

         15  and I understand that you had complied and we

         16  appreciate again that effort as well as we look to

         17  compare one report to the previous year.

         18                 Generally speaking, are there any

         19  areas of concern? I'm hoping that DCAS doesn't issue

         20  this report just for the sake of issuing it and

         21  doesn't actually look at it.  We've had that

         22  instance in some other reports issued by the City.

         23  Do you look at the report?  Do you look at the

         24  numbers?  And if you do, and I hope that you do, are

         25  there any areas of concern that DCAS might have?
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          2                 MR. PALUSZEK:  Councilman, before my

          3  colleague answers that question, I just want to make

          4  clear and also provide on behalf of Commissioner

          5  Hirst, her own feelings on how important this issue

          6  is, and sort of as illustrative of that belief in

          7  how important this is, the Commissioner is actually

          8  going to be meeting with William Roberts from

          9  District Council 37, next Friday, on this very

         10  issue, the one- in- three rule, other aspects of

         11  Civil Service Law.  So I just wanted to make sure

         12  that before we got going with questions and answers

         13  that was made known.  This is something we consider

         14  very seriously.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And while I

         16  appreciate that and that is a great sign, and

         17  obviously it shows of interest of the issue, in all

         18  due respect of course the DC 37 which obviously has

         19  a large part of our City workforce, there are others

         20  obviously in the City workforce that have similar

         21  concerns of DC 37, so, and I know the Commissioner

         22  has been very successful in answering questions

         23  subsequent to a hearing what we may have had, so

         24  again, while I appreciate that effort and having a

         25  meeting with DC 37, again I would like to keep the
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          2  door open so that subsequent to this hearing we can

          3  answer any questions for others who may have issues.

          4                 MR. PALUSZEK:  The Commissioner's

          5  door is never closed.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you so

          7  much.

          8                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

          9  DOBROWSKY:  Council Member in regard to your

         10  question, we do review this report.  As you know

         11  it's quite voluminous, several hundred pages all

         12  told, so it's difficult to go through each and every

         13  page, but in general we look at various titles which

         14  we are interested in reviewing information, review

         15  the actions by various agencies to give us an

         16  overall perspective on how list movement has gone

         17  during the year and from that information we then

         18  strategize in terms of how we can then certify lists

         19  to better replace the probationals and fill

         20  vacancies.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Again, more

         22  specifically to my question, in reviewing the

         23  report, analyzing its data, any concerns that DCAS

         24  has with any of the processes, any of the numbers,

         25  any of the agencies, any concerns at all?
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          2                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

          3  DOBROWSKY:  Well at this point we have three data

          4  points broadly speaking.  Those represent the three

          5  years for which we have prepared the report. We have

          6  compared statistics on year over year results,

          7  comparing 2006 to 2005 and to 2004, looking for

          8  trends.  However, three years at this point doesn't

          9  really give us a very reliable indication as to how

         10  the numbers will trend.  It does give us some

         11  intermediate results.  So right now it's hard to

         12  really come up with a real response in terms of

         13  concerns that might be raised.  We do notice that

         14  there are some titles where we certified lists and

         15  we found that the results were quite excellent.  The

         16  agencies used the lists, exhausted, especially with

         17  regards to promotion lists, the agencies have

         18  exhausted most of the lists, there are very few

         19  eligibles remaining on several other lists, so we've

         20  been hawking by some of the results that we know

         21  that we saw.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Then that may

         23  be a question that I would have for you, maybe a

         24  couple of months from now as you digest the

         25  information, I guess again I'm not getting a
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          2  specific answer as far as your concerns and if I'm

          3  understanding you correctly, you're still analyzing

          4  the numbers, your concerns aren't flushed out just

          5  yet, is that correct?

          6                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

          7  DOBROWSKY:  Well basically it's an on- going review.

          8    As we look at this report in conjunction with the

          9  Charter report, the quarterly report that issued to

         10  the City Council, the Mayor's Office, Comptroller's

         11  Office.  Looking at the provisional numbers from the

         12  Charter report and in conjunction with the report

         13  generated pursuant to Local Law 50, we get a picture

         14  as to what titles are of concern to us, titles that

         15  have numerous provisionals and looking at the Local

         16  Law 50 report we can see what the actions had been

         17  over the year and what remedial action we need to

         18  take at that point.  And so we have somewhere in the

         19  neighborhood of six or seven hundred eligible lists

         20  in existence at this point.  We not only list our

         21  establish in 2006, but also those that were

         22  established 2005, 2004, and 2003. So there's quite a

         23  bit of data that we look at in terms of coming up

         24  with a strategy to certify lists who fill vacancies

         25  and replace provisionals.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You mentioned,

          3  and this is something that we will have a discussion

          4  with subsequent to this hearing possibly in

          5  September just to get an update, so like three

          6  months or so from now we'll get an update again

          7  looking at your concerns, regarding the report.  You

          8  mentioned remedial action if need to be taken by

          9  DCAS against a certain agency I would suppose. And

         10  that has always concerned me about what enforcement

         11  power does DCAS have if an agency is not following

         12  procedure, not hiring from a list.  So first, speak

         13  a little bit more about remedial action, what power

         14  does DCAS have, and secondly have they enforced or

         15  have they used their powers against an agency who

         16  was not called from a list?

         17                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         18  DOBROWSKY:  Well our powers are pretty much in terms

         19  of persuasion.  We contact the agency, the agency

         20  personnel officers, reminding them that our records

         21  first of all indicate that there are provisionals

         22  showing, which we need to have either replaced or

         23  removed because of Civil Service Law, in that

         24  there's a list in existence.  We tried to make sure

         25  that our records are correct.  There are times when
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          2  an agency may have, in fact, moved their provisional

          3  out, but the records may not reflect that for

          4  whatever reason.  So one of the first things we do

          5  is try to make sure that all of our records are in

          6  accord. That in fact when we say to an agency that

          7  there are provisionals, that there are really

          8  provisionals serving.  We then impress on the agency

          9  that they are in violation of law in that they have

         10  a provisional serving in the face of a list.  We

         11  will then certify that list to the agency with the

         12  intent of having the agency remove that provisional

         13  and replace probational or as the case may be.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Mr. Dobrowsky,

         15  let me ask you this, yes or no question, are there

         16  agencies not adhering to hiring form the list?  Yes

         17  or no?

         18                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         19  DOBROWSKY:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, second

         21  question, related to the first one, what agencies

         22  are they?  What specific agency do you know is not

         23  adhering to the list and what remedial action, what

         24  persuasion are you planning to take against that

         25  agency?
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          2                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

          3  DOBROWSKY:  Well we have been in contact with some

          4  agencies.  We have mentioned to them that there is a

          5  problem and are hoping to see some action.  One of

          6  the issues that we face is that the bigger an agency

          7  is, there's a direct correlation between the size of

          8  an a agency and the number of provisionals, total

          9  number probation as serving.  One of the agencies

         10  that we have currently where provisional and serving

         11  lists haven't been fully utilized is the Transit

         12  Authority.  There are some titles where we would

         13  have preferred to have seen some greater utilization

         14  of lists, but up to this point we haven't seen that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You mentioned

         16  at least more than one agency, Transit Authority

         17  being one of them, the other agency?

         18                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         19  DOBROWSKY:  The other agency that we have, we have

         20  contacted the Department of Education regarding

         21  certain titles that they needed to move on and we've

         22  been hoping to see some results fairly soon from

         23  them.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Any others,

         25  Transit, DOE, anybody else?
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          2                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

          3  DOBROWSKY:  There may be some other agencies, I just

          4  don't have on the tip of my tongue at this point.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  At least with

          6  those two, number one obviously we appreciate your

          7  efforts and again speaking to them, using the power

          8  of persuasion and obviously hopefully getting them

          9  back on track and adhering to the process, so we

         10  appreciate your efforts and that's something else

         11  that this Committee and you will follow- up on.

         12  Hopefully you're successful in that.

         13                 What agency has the highest number of

         14  provisionals?

         15                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         16  DOBROWSKY:  I believe that it's the Transit

         17  Authority primarily because they are the largest

         18  non- uniform agency so with the large numbers of

         19  employees that they have, they tend to accumulate

         20  more provisionals, they may have exhausted their

         21  list or there might not be a list in place, the list

         22  may have terminated.  So, at a given point in time

         23  they would need to hire provisionally to maintain

         24  services.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And you know
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          2  the average number for the Transit Authority.  Do

          3  you have any idea of the average number over a

          4  length of time that the provisionals stay there?

          5                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

          6  DOBROWSKY:  In general, we see once the lists have

          7  been established, we'll use the list to meet their

          8  operating needs.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  The report

         10  itself, again we want it to be a useful report, we

         11  understand it goes to the Mayor, the Comptroller,

         12  and the Public Advocate and the Speaker, is it

         13  available on- line at all?

         14                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         15  DOBROWSKY:  I don't believe it's available yet, but

         16  we are looking into that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That's a

         18  possibility in the near future?

         19                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         20  DOBROWSKY:  Yes it is.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I know it's an

         22  effort.  Don't get me wrong.  This is a rather

         23  lengthy report and obliviously every page would have

         24  to be scanned, I understand that, and I appreciate

         25  again your efforts in trying to get that done
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          2  hopefully soon, minimally if we could do some type

          3  of synopsis of the report on- line that might help.

          4  Maybe comparisons from the prior year, ultimately

          5  eventually hopefully the report can be available on-

          6  line for others to see.

          7                 We had spoken about, at the November

          8  2006 hearing, about candidates who are not notified.

          9    It came up that a candidate is off the list, never

         10  gets notified, I think we had had the discussion

         11  that it's the agency that has to notify them.  I

         12  expressed at that point my preference for DCAS,

         13  because I have so much faith in DCAS to notify the

         14  candidate only because DCAS administers the list so

         15  I figured again easier for DCAS to notify the

         16  candidate.  Has there been any movement on that?

         17                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         18  DOBROWSKY:  We have had some internal discussions on

         19  that and our feeling is that this would be very

         20  burdensome on DCAS.  We certify several hundred

         21  thousand individuals over the course of year which

         22  spread out over many agencies, it's something that

         23  is feasible.  Concentrated on one agency would be

         24  quite a task.  In addition, we would have to, there

         25  would be constant communication with us and the
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          2  agencies in terms of scheduling the eligibles for an

          3  interview, on some of our bigger lists agencies

          4  schedule interviews over a number of days in order

          5  to attract a large enough pool.  Basically the

          6  logistics of an effort like this would really place

          7  a burden on DCAS and it just doesn't seem at this

          8  point feasible to take this over from the various

          9  agencies.

         10                 MR. PALUSZEK:  And Councilman I would

         11  add that from a legal prospective, the appointing

         12  authority plays an integral role in this.  We are

         13  not the appointing authority.  We pass on to the

         14  appointment authority the names of qualified people

         15  to appoint. It would muddy the water frankly to have

         16  DCAS, not the appointing authority take that role

         17  on.  That is clearly their responsibility and I

         18  think among the things that we're considering is

         19  perhaps better enforcement on our part of the law

         20  which requires them to provide such notification.

         21  We do have a personnel services bulletin that

         22  describes how that is to be done and I think we are

         23  prepared to look at that to see how better we can

         24  enforce if there are in fact these problems

         25  existing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Which agency

          3  would notify the candidate of an interview?

          4                 MR. PALUSZEK:  The appointing

          5  authority.  The agency itself.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  The agency

          7  itself.

          8                 And who would notify the candidate of

          9  an appeal process if they want to appeal a

         10  particular process in the hiring or promotional, who

         11  will notify them of the appeal process?

         12                 MR. PALUSZEK:  There is no statutory

         13  or administrative appeal process in the one- in-

         14  three process.  That is an action that an appointing

         15  authority is allowed to take and there is no

         16  administrative or statutory appeal.  With respect to

         17  other types of qualifications, disqualified for

         18  medical reasons, for character reasons, those

         19  disqualifications are typically prepared and sent by

         20  the hiring agency.  DCAS does play a role.  We do

         21  participate, they do send notification to us about

         22  disqualifications from lists.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I would think

         24  that if we're going to move -- DCAS is at least

         25  considering being the oversight of agencies
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          2  notifying the candidates I think is a step in the

          3  right direction, so again I look forward to

          4  hopefully you becoming at least some authoritative

          5  figure in looking at agencies and then notifying the

          6  candidates.

          7                 If we could just compare the two

          8  reports, at least maybe the last two reports, those

          9  individuals who were CNS'ed seems to be on the

         10  increase.  Would DCAS have any opinion about why the

         11  increase of those candidates who are CNS'ed?

         12                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         13  DOBROWSKY:  What we see is that when you compare one

         14  year to another, if there's an increase in the

         15  number of appointments being made there tends to be

         16  an increase in number of CNS's.  And that's sort of

         17  logical in that the greater number of appointments,

         18  the more people you've interviewed for that

         19  position.  So the greater number of interviews, the

         20  number of CNS's will tend to rise.  We also see that

         21  will happen with some of the other offside actions.

         22  The more people you call in for interviews, the more

         23  declinations you find, you also find that more

         24  people fail to report for those interviews and on

         25  the other side of that coin, if the number of
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          2  appointments, if you compare two years where the

          3  number of appointing decreased from the preceding

          4  year, you tend to see the same thing from a

          5  different prospective.  The number of CNS's will

          6  drop, the number of equinations (phonetic) will

          7  drop.  So these numbers tend to be very highly

          8  correlated, the more interviews the more

          9  appointments, the greater number of all of these

         10  offside actions and CNS actions.  So it's kind of

         11  intuitive in that the more people you interview the

         12  more selection decisions you make the more people

         13  you'll have to CNS on that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  A direct

         15  correlation in increase of appointments, increase of

         16  CNS --

         17                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         18  DOBROWSKY:  Correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  -- Individuals.

         20

         21                 If there and there has been an

         22  increase in appointments, correct, compared from

         23  last year?  I understand there has been an increase

         24  in appointments?

         25                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER
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          2  DOBROWSKY:  I don't have the data exactly in front

          3  of me.  I know we have -- there was an increase,

          4  there may have been a slight increase which resulted

          5  in slight increases in the rest of the offside

          6  actions also.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  According to my

          8  notes, I'm just comparing them to last year, I think

          9  there was a slight increase in appointments.  The

         10  other concern I had in reviewing the report is the

         11  amount of increase in provisionals.  Seems to be

         12  kind of a big increase actually.  Ten thousand

         13  roughly to six thousand in 2005.  Why the big

         14  increase in provisionals, and is DCAS concerned or

         15  what may be an action by DCAS in the future?

         16                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         17  DOBROWSKY:  Oh yes, we're quite concerned by that.

         18  When we saw that number we took a look at the rise

         19  and provisionals at various titles.  And what struck

         20  us was that there were several titles where the

         21  eligible list were either exhausted or terminated in

         22  2006.  As a result, we saw a number of agencies

         23  appointing provisionally to those titles in that

         24  there was no eligible list in place, or the eligible

         25  list was exhausted.  And that accounted for a
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          2  significant increase year to year.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  In the

          4  instances where the eligible lists were not

          5  terminated, or basically there was an eligible list

          6  and provisionals there were hired.  Has DCAS

          7  targeted those agencies that were hiring

          8  provisionals where a list exists?

          9                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         10  DOBROWSKY:  Where a list is in existence, we

         11  basically don't find provisional appointments in

         12  that year.  But if there are provisionals existing,

         13  those agencies were targeted for certification

         14  action.  Lists were sent to them, they were advised

         15  that they must do something with the provisionals

         16  that are serving and we are providing them with

         17  certifications to assist them in that action.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And you're

         19  confident that DCAS basically has their finger on

         20  the pulse.  That basically DCAS is structured well

         21  enough, staffed adequately to look at the situations

         22  where eligible lists are still in existence,

         23  provisionals may be hired.  You believe you have

         24  that under control?

         25                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER
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          2  DOBROWSKY:  We are in the process of implementing a

          3  number of initiatives which will help us along those

          4  lines.  We're moving to a web- based application

          5  system, we're also looking at a type of examination

          6  which we will refer to as an education and

          7  experience examination, which we will be able to

          8  handle on an on- line basis.  We think this will

          9  greatly expand our capability to administer

         10  additional exams in the very near future.  We're

         11  looking to have these actions, these projects,

         12  implemented by the end of this year and hope to

         13  start seeing some results next year from these

         14  various activities.

         15                 MR. PALUSZEK:  I would also like to

         16  add that we're going to opening, I believe in the

         17  Fall, our first computerized testing center which

         18  will provide candidates with the ability to walk- in

         19  and take the test at a computer.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And I

         21  appreciate you bringing that up Mr. Paluszek because

         22  that is probably going to be a topic of this

         23  Committee.  The increased amount of these test

         24  centers as we look to give these tests more

         25  frequently to open up hopefully more job
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          2  opportunities and my conversations with Commissioner

          3  Hirst, I'd love to entertain that as a agenda item

          4  somewhere in the near future, these new tests

          5  centers, so I look forward to that. And just again,

          6  generally speaking about the increase, the frequency

          7  of the exams, that also was an issue that came up at

          8  the November 2006 hearing, the fact that some of the

          9  exams aren't given frequently enough.  Does DCAS

         10  look at these exams and try to see if we can make

         11  some of these exams that had not been given in 10,

         12  15 years on a more frequent basis?  And before you

         13  answer that, I'm sorry, I just have to do a little

         14  housekeeping, Council Member Mike Nelson has joined

         15  us today.  Thank you very much Council Member

         16  Nelson.  Frequency of exams please?

         17                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         18  DOBROWSKY:  Yes, there are number of issues that

         19  DCAS looks at in terms of scheduling examinations.

         20  Priority is certainly with the uniform forces.  We

         21  have to make sure the City's always safe.  We look

         22  at titles there that are health related to ensure

         23  not only safety but the health and well- being of

         24  the City's social services titles we are also quite

         25  concerned about titles that provide basic services
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          2  to vulnerable clients.  Other titles that we look at

          3  are revenue generating titles, titles with high

          4  numbers of provisionals.  So we have these various

          5  criteria that we look at in terms of scheduling

          6  examinations and certainly one of the criteria also

          7  is an examination for which we haven't had an

          8  examination in a number of years.  Unfortunately

          9  some of those titles sometimes have very few people

         10  serving in them.  They're kind of on the back-

         11  burner because there are other more critical titles

         12  that we are looking at.  But we do look at those

         13  titles.  We try to schedule them as quickly as we

         14  can and as often as we can.  We're hoping that with

         15  these new initiatives, primarily education

         16  experience format on an on- line basis, that that

         17  will enable us to increase the number of exams that

         18  we give, especially for those titles where we

         19  haven't had too many exams given in the past couple

         20  of years.  So we're optimistic that this will

         21  greatly assist us.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you and I

         23  appreciate you making the efforts to look at these

         24  exams.  We want the more frequent the exam obviously

         25  the more job opportunities, recently I read that and
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          2  believe the fire fighter's exam will not be given

          3  for another four years.  Is that basically due to

          4  the fact that we have a list that's again adequate

          5  enough for the next four years to draw from?

          6                 MR. PALUSZEK:  That's exactly the

          7  reason Councilman. The fire fighter lists generally

          8  tend to be several thousand names long and

          9  traditionally has been more than adequate to fill

         10  four years worth of vacancies.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO;  I understand

         12  there is a State law that offers some assistance in

         13  administrating exams, can you elaborate on that?

         14  And has the City at least reached out for some State

         15  assistance?

         16                 MR. PALUSZEK:  As my colleague

         17  mentioned, we are looking at a wide range of options

         18  that will enable DCAS to do its job even better in

         19  terms of reducing the number of provisionals. We're

         20  not going to close the door on any possible option.

         21  Yes there are several provisions in the State Law

         22  that we have not taken advantage of in the past,

         23  that we need to at least consider and we're not

         24  going to reject them outright.  We're obviously

         25  proud of the exams that we give.  We don't know much
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          2  about how the State puts together its exams, or what

          3  kinds of lists its exams produce, but we will

          4  definitely look at that.  There's no option that's

          5  not on the table.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That's

          7  promising, and again it's optimistic to hear that

          8  DCAS is looking at other options and other

          9  assistance in this case from the State, that would

         10  be helpful down the road somewhere for our

         11  workforce. Do you know specifically what kind of

         12  State Assistance is available?  Is it financial, is

         13  it administrative?

         14                 MR. PALUSZEK:  Off the top of my head

         15  I believe there are two provisions in the State

         16  Civil Service Law, one which enables us to, or any

         17  municipality to go to the State and pay them to give

         18  an exam, or the State in its own role as a Civil

         19  Service Commission produces lists for its employees.

         20    We can ask that they provide us their lists to

         21  fill vacancies.  We have no idea how they classify

         22  their titles for their use, again we are very proud

         23  of the exams we give.  Every exam, even an exam that

         24  is used by the State would have to be, and this is a

         25  technical term, validated for New York City, which
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          2  is an added step in a process.  We've never

          3  validated a State test for New York City, but again

          4  we understand fully what are responsibilities are,

          5  and nothing is off the table.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:   Again, let me

          7  express my appreciation for DCAS looking at these

          8  options, and like I said, we look forward to some

          9  positive information at a future hearing. Candidates

         10  get back on the list, a candidate rejected, off the

         11  list, trying to get back on the list, who's

         12  discretion is it to get that individual back on the

         13  list?

         14                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         15  DOBROWSKY:  Well if the candidate is off the list

         16  because the candidate through some action of their

         17  own, for example, they failed to report for an

         18  interview or they declined a position, that

         19  candidate can request to be restored to the list

         20  through their own action.  They could write to DCAS.

         21    They can come in person to DCAS and put in the

         22  request to be restored.  They have a maximum of

         23  three restorations which they can be granted, and

         24  the granting of the restoration is pretty much

         25  automatic.  We do not not restore someone when
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          2  requested.  The other offside action is when an

          3  agency has decided they do not want to appoint

          4  somebody the CNS action.  When the person has been

          5  CNS'ed by an agency three times, the person will no

          6  longer be certified back to that agency.  The

          7  individual can request the agency to petition on

          8  their behalf to DCAS that the person be restored to

          9  the list and if the agency is willing to do so then

         10  we will grant the agencies request and put the

         11  person back on the list.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So unless the

         13  individual does something so wrong, so egregious,

         14  basically hurting themselves, basically DCAS or the

         15  agency petition, they're taken back on the list

         16  pretty much automatically.

         17                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         18  DOBROWSKY:  The CNS action is a little bit

         19  different.  Agencies may not always be willing to

         20  restore someone to the list.  If they have CNS'ed

         21  someone three times and feel that the person is not

         22  suitable for the positions that they have, they may

         23  decide that they do not want to consider this person

         24  again at that time.  And they may decline to restore

         25  that person.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  How much

          3  discretion do you think is in this process?  You

          4  know, you mention DCAS pretty much automatically in

          5  one situation gets a person back on, now this other

          6  situation an agency will obviously take a look at

          7  the situation maybe on a case by case basis, how

          8  much discretion do you think is in this process?  A

          9  lot, or maybe not much at all?

         10                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         11  DOBROWSKY:  Well this is part of the selection

         12  process.  As a result of interviews, possibly review

         13  or work history.  The agency has made a decision

         14  that this is someone that they are not willing to

         15  hire at this time.  That this person is just not

         16  suitable for this position. The amount of discretion

         17  in that is hard to tell because this is really an

         18  individual agency decision.  There's a panel that

         19  will interview this person, come to a decision,

         20  we're not privy to that information.  The reason for

         21  the nonselection is not revealed to us and it's not

         22  required to be revealed to anyone.

         23                 MR. PALUSZEK:  I would add that all

         24  government entities are expected to act rationally.

         25  But beyond being rational, they do have a great deal
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          2  of discretion with whether or not to join in a

          3  request to have somebody restored to a list.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Mr. Paluszek,

          5  have you found an agency to not act rationally, even

          6  that's discretion in a definition of what's

          7  rational.  But if you found an agency not acting

          8  rational, DCAS steps in?  Again, as an authoritative

          9  figure? Does DCAS reprimand that agency?

         10                 MR. PALUSZEK:  There is no role in

         11  either the rules of the City or its State Law for a

         12  municipal commission, which is DCAS, to direct an

         13  appointing authority to restore somebody to a list.

         14  It is an agency, an appointing agency prerogative.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  But you

         16  mention, again rational, if we find an agency is not

         17  being rational for whatever reason, and there can be

         18  a multitude of reasons or issues that an agency

         19  might have with an individual, again, because there

         20  is a certain matter of discretion there could be a

         21  personal reason and so forth, what rights does that

         22  person have if they feel the agency is not treating

         23  them fairly.

         24                 MR. PALUSZEK:  The law does provide

         25  that when an individual thinks that an agency has
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          2  not acted rationally to bring an action, not to

          3  DCAS, but an action in court to say that this agency

          4  did not act in a rational manner.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Is DCAS aware

          6  of any large number of cases like this being brought

          7  against the City or no?

          8                 MR. PALUSZEK:  That would be more a

          9  Law Department questions, but I will say that in my

         10  experience, I'm not aware of a very large number of

         11  that kind of an action.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Any questions

         13  from my colleagues?

         14                 Lastly gentlemen, and I appreciate

         15  your time, last November, 2006, we had a hearing and

         16  a promotional exam for the job title of Marine

         17  Engineer I believe was eliminated, if I'm not

         18  mistaken.  That was a discussion that we had.

         19                 MR. PALUSZEK:  What do you mean by

         20  eliminated?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I believe the

         22  exam was no longer being given for Marine Engineer,

         23  to your knowledge?

         24                 MR. PALUSZEK:  Well Marine Engineer

         25  remains a competitive class title as best I know.
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          2  Therefore, exams are to be given when there are

          3  provisional surveying in the title.  If there are

          4  provisionals serving, an exam will have to be given.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, aside

          6  from that specific title -- go ahead.

          7                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

          8  DOBROWSKY:  My understand is that at one time Marine

          9  Engineer was an exam that was held on a continuous

         10  basis and that people could apply at any time. Our

         11  experience has been that over the last few years the

         12  eligible list that we established for this title

         13  contained one or two people.  In discussions with

         14  the Department of Transportation it was decided that

         15  this would not remain a continuous filing

         16  examination, but would be held on an as needed

         17  basis.  Now we have established I believe

         18  approximately four eligible lists for this title

         19  over the last three or four years.  So it's not as

         20  though we don't give this exam quite often, but the

         21  decision was made that with so few individuals

         22  applying for this exam, we would hold this on an as

         23  needed basis so that we can utilize our resources

         24  for other titles where there's a greater need.  It

         25  just seemed that with one person applying, or two
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          2  people applying this was not a high priority title

          3  at this point.  We would consider the agencies

          4  request to hold a new exam if they so desired or

          5  requested, but that it didn't seem to really make

          6  much sense at that point to hold, our resources, we

          7  needed a person assigned to this exam to take care

          8  of it, to really have it sort of on a stand- by

          9  basis where there were other exams which were more

         10  pressing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Mr. Dobrowsky,

         12  thank you for the explanation, using Marine Engineer

         13  only as one example, I'll talk generally now, then

         14  there are titles that possibly the exam is not given

         15  until an as needed basis.  Is that correct?

         16                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         17  DOBROWSKY:  That's correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.  For the

         19  individuals in that title, where there aren't three

         20  on a list supposedly, are they at a disadvantage and

         21  if so what can be done to I guess improve their

         22  promotional opportunities?

         23                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

         24  DOBROWSKY:  When there are less than three people on

         25  a title, well an agency can still request an
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          2  examination and we will certainly entertain it if we

          3  find that this was a title for which we haven't

          4  given an examination for quite a number of years.

          5  We unfortunately are in a situation where we do have

          6  quite often pressing needs from some of our law

          7  enforcement titles, for some health titles where the

          8  decision is made that there's a much greater benefit

          9  to the City in terms of holding an examination for

         10  those particular titles.  I know that's not an

         11  answer that somebody would want to hear that there

         12  title is not that critical, but basically that's

         13  what it comes down to.  There are titles where we

         14  always need to have a list.  We want to make sure

         15  there's always a fire fighter list out there.  You

         16  know no one wants to contemplate the situation where

         17  we don't have fire fighters that we can hire,

         18  sanitation workers, police officers, those are

         19  titles that we really have always on the front

         20  burner.  We have to make sure that they are taken

         21  care of. We try to get to other titles as we can and

         22  we're hoping as mentioned previously with our

         23  initiatives that we're implementing later on this

         24  year, that we will be able to at least be in a

         25  better position to hold examinations for a greater
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          2  range of titles.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Dobrowsky.  I appreciate your explanation on that.

          5  This Committee will perceive all job titles to be

          6  important, at least to those who work in them, as

          7  they provide for their families, so I look forward

          8  to working with DCAS as we try and help all workers

          9  and their job titles and again I appreciate your

         10  efforts in that matter.

         11                 Their being no other questions from

         12  my colleagues I really look forward, a number of

         13  things were mentioned, new initiatives, the test

         14  centers, the State assistance, I'm kind of

         15  optimistic that obviously DCAS is moving in the

         16  right direction of ways to improve obviously

         17  opportunities for our workforce, so again I look

         18  forward to working with you in that endeavor.  I

         19  want to now welcome my colleague and Member of this

         20  Committee, Council Member Jim Gennaro, thank you

         21  very much for being here today.  I'm putting him on

         22  the spot right now, any questions for DCAS.

         23                 There being no other questions,

         24  gentlemen I appreciate your time and look forward to

         25  working with you in the future.
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          2                 DEPUTY ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

          3  DOBROWSKY:  Thank you Councilman.

          4                 MR. PALUSZEK:  Thank you Councilman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 Our next panel, Thomas Anderson, Vice

          8  Chair of OSA, and Robert Spencer of OSA.  Gentlemen.

          9                 MR. SPENCER:  Thank you Chairman

         10  Addabbo and Members of the Committee for extending

         11  the opportunity for the Organization of Staff

         12  Analysts to address the Committee about the City's

         13  use of the one- in- three rule and related matters.

         14  We greatly appreciate the Committee's --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I'm sorry to

         16  break your rhythm here, can I just ask you to state

         17  your name please.  Sorry.

         18                 MR. SPENCER:  I was going to get to

         19  that in the next sentence.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

         21                 MR. SPENCER:  You got me too fast.

         22                 Ongoing oversight, we really

         23  appreciate the Committee's ongoing oversight of the

         24  civil service appointment process.

         25                 I'm Rob Spencer and I'm a staff
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          2  representative at OSA and I'm here today on behalf

          3  of OSA's Chair Bob Croghan.  He remains extremely

          4  concerned with the current approach of the

          5  Department of Citywide Administrative Services

          6  towards appointments from civil service lists

          7  pursuant to the one- in- three rule.  The overuse of

          8  the one- in- three rule to bar candidates from

          9  appointment from open competitive and promotional

         10  lists is a practice that must end.

         11                 Last November, Bob urged greater

         12  funding for DCAS in testimony before the Committee

         13  and we continue to recommend that DCAS have the

         14  needed funding and staff to ensure that it can fully

         15  perform its critical functions in ensuring

         16  appropriate civil service process in City agencies.

         17                 We strongly believe that the City

         18  must begin to move in the direction of elimination

         19  or more restrictive use of the one in- three rule

         20  and more appointments from civil service lists.  We

         21  fully support District Council 37's publicly stated

         22  position that 100 percent of all candidates should

         23  be appointed in strict list number order.

         24                 The City argues it needs discretion

         25  in appointments. We believe it already has many and
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          2  sufficient safeguards in the probationary process.

          3  Without violating the spirit and intent of

          4  appointments by merit and fitness, it has ample

          5  opportunity to deal with employees who, once hired,

          6  are subsequently found to be unfit.

          7                 We believe the present state of

          8  affairs is unfair to all, including provisionals,

          9  who are not being afforded the appropriate

         10  opportunity to obtain permanent appointments.  And

         11  it allows favoritism, bias, and discrimination to

         12  creep back into hiring and promotion process for the

         13  public service.

         14                 In addition, we believe in the need

         15  for Citywide promotional lists, since those stuck on

         16  small lists at small agencies or those remaining at

         17  the end of appointments made from larger lists at

         18  major agencies may never have a fair opportunity for

         19  promotional appointment.

         20                 Finally, OSA is grateful for the

         21  Council's action through Local Law 50 of 2004 in

         22  mandating annual reporting on list movement and

         23  appointments.  However, we believe the current

         24  reporting could be significantly improved by regular

         25  updates in a simple format showing how individual
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          2  lists are moving, shared with the unions

          3  representing the affected title.

          4                 And DCAS must make improvements in

          5  notifying those on civil service lists during the

          6  life of the list, letting them know when they've

          7  been considered and not selected, when they have

          8  been removed from a list and how to restore

          9  themselves to the list.

         10                 Thank you again for your vigilance.

         11  OSA looks forward to continuing to work closely with

         12  you and the Committee on these issues.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you Mr.

         14  Spencer.

         15                 MR. ANDERSON:  Good morning Mr.

         16  Addabbo, Members of the Committee, Members of the

         17  Civil Service Community.  My statement today is

         18  relatively unprepared because of family situation,

         19  but I would like to review with you the situation of

         20  the employer in the City of New York, vis- a- vis

         21  that people who work for it, their employees.  There

         22  is adequate, in fact overwhelming ability for the

         23  City to pick the people that are competent to do

         24  their job.  The Civil Service Commission which has a

         25  very long history is designed to try to keep that as
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          2  rational a process as possible, as fair as possible,

          3  to provide for the feeling that the employees are

          4  not a part of a huge patronage system.  Now I won't

          5  denigrate the patronage system, it has its uses and

          6  sometimes serves the City well, but it is very

          7  important that the people that do the day to day job

          8  have the feeling that their employer is fair and

          9  honest and that the system is transparent.

         10                 When I say that the system is very

         11  adequate, I want to point out what I think you all

         12  know the system consists of. First of all, DCAS,

         13  absolutely tailors its job descriptions to the job

         14  that has to be done.  It sends professionals out in

         15  the field, it consults with commissioners, it

         16  analyzes the skills involved and it finally says

         17  this is the type of person you need and these are

         18  the qualifications those people need.  So that's

         19  step one.

         20                 Second of all, it sets up a testing

         21  system.  It has great latitude in the type of the

         22  testing that it can set up.  I, myself, took a test,

         23  well now it seems like many years ago in which I had

         24  a written examination, a multiple choice

         25  examination, an essay, I believe it was two hours
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          2  long for each of four different areas, and I finally

          3  had an oral examination.  If at the end of that DCAS

          4  felt that I was inappropriate for the job, I then

          5  had to actually be interviewed by an agency when

          6  they picked me up.  So there was plenty of contact

          7  with me and my experiences were well known.  That

          8  can be done by DCAS at any point for any particular

          9  type of position.  So they have the choice of making

         10  a good choice of people via examination and that can

         11  be done.  The third step is one- in- three.  One-

         12  in- three is a system in which the agencies pick

         13  from a group of three candidates for a position.

         14  This can be manipulated at the present time in so

         15  many ways that they are practically impossible to

         16  count.  You can take a pool and say we're going to

         17  lump together 30 or 40 positions at one time and

         18  interview for them all at one whack.  This is

         19  sometimes done.  You can interview a person and then

         20  arbitrarily afterwards say well, we interviewed that

         21  person and let's say we interviewed him for this

         22  position and this position and this position because

         23  they were all in the pool and therefore, we've

         24  turned him down three times.  So you can bypass

         25  people very easily on a list even if they were
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          2  number one.  And in fact we had the Civil Service

          3  Chief covered some years ago a position of a man who

          4  was number one on a very long list in his agency who

          5  was repeated year after year given outstanding and

          6  superior evaluations and was told by his agency that

          7  he had been considered not selected for three

          8  positions, and no, they wouldn't restore him to the

          9  list.  It was not because they disliked him, they

         10  kept him in his position, they gave him support,

         11  they listened to his work and so on, but what they

         12  wanted was to be able to reach a much lower number

         13  on the list because that person was a friend to a

         14  commissioner.  Now, if you're going to do that to

         15  one of your prized employees, what do you think that

         16  does in terms of the attitude towards the City.  But

         17  that is just one of the many ways that one- in-

         18  three can be manipulated and we find that one of the

         19  measures that really should be looked at are how

         20  many people are actually bypassed when you get to

         21  the bottom person on the list.  If there are one or

         22  two or three people, that would make sense.  In

         23  promotional lists, maybe three or four people would

         24  make some sense, but these people were able to do

         25  the job, they do it well, they usually get
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          2  evaluations.  The people in the agency know. The

          3  reason why the can get to the bottom is because

          4  there is no supervision of the way an agency does an

          5  appointment from the one in- three system.

          6                 We would also urge you to consider in

          7  some way changing the one- in- three rule to a much

          8  more restrictive rule, or one which we would prefer,

          9  asking for the agencies to actually justify

         10  bypassing a person on a list to a higher authority.

         11  We think this would at least retard the process of

         12  unbridled movement.

         13                 After an appointment is made from a

         14  list, the City has a probationary period for an

         15  employee, that lasts a whole year. One would think

         16  that having appointed a person from the list in

         17  which you had so much latitude about who you would

         18  choose, you would not need such a long probationary

         19  period.  One would think that given such a long

         20  probationary period, you could just simply say let's

         21  go straight down the list and knock off the ones we

         22  don't like.  Considering the fact that there is no

         23  real need to justify your dropping a person for

         24  probationary status is almost outrageous that you

         25  would then say we should choose one- in- three.  We
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          2  would also prefer to have that process tightened up.

          3    We would like a much better system in terms of

          4  evaluation on that and a much more restrictive

          5  thing, but it's not as important as one- in- three,

          6  because the reality is the reason why provisionals

          7  are made in the first place and why one in three is

          8  avoided is because there's personal attachments

          9  between people at the top of the list and the bottom

         10  of the list and those personal attachments are on

         11  the basis of personal knowledge.  You know the guy,

         12  you like him, so you want to work with him.  You

         13  want to make him an appointment.  Our point is, if

         14  you appoint the man who is actually scoring higher,

         15  you would get to know him, you would get to like him

         16  because you would be able to do the job and if he

         17  couldn't you could get rid of him. So we also think

         18  that's a part.

         19                 And then lastly, the City has

         20  disciplinary process so that even after he has

         21  probationary status if he can't do the job you can

         22  eliminate him from employment.  So the employer has

         23  a huge numbers of protections in this one.  The one-

         24  in- three rule is badly constructed to allow an

         25  evasion of what I think is a very important part of
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          2  rational City government, the Civil Service process.

          3

          4                 And I want to address one third piece

          5  of control that the City has here, the employer has

          6  here, which puzzles me very much and we've never

          7  mentioned before, and that is the futile nature of

          8  the civil service system.  In the current situation

          9  a person takes a Citywide promotional appointment, a

         10  promotional exam, scores highly on it.  He or she

         11  can be then bypassed on the one- in- three list.

         12  But he cannot go to another agency that really wants

         13  that person and say look Joe, I passed the list, I'm

         14  very high on that list, why don't you appoint me

         15  because you know that I do good work, or here are my

         16  evaluations from my previous employer.  They can't

         17  do that because the agencies say, oh no, he is our

         18  peon.  Just because we don't appoint him from a

         19  civil service list, just because we say we will

         20  never restore him to a list because we want to get

         21  further down the list and that person cannot then go

         22  to another employer and say, look, I am a free

         23  citizen of this country, I passed the exam, I showed

         24  my worth, I deserve a try- out.  So that's one of my

         25  personal gripes in all this and I'm just thankful
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          2  for the opportunity to be able to raise.

          3                 So that's basically what OSA would

          4  like to present. We firmly support anything that you

          5  do in terms of making the one in- three rule more

          6  restrictive and more controlled and more rational.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Mr. Anderson

          9  and Mr. Robert Spencer I appreciate both of your

         10  testimony and Mr. Anderson I know that you traveled

         11  today to get here, --

         12                 MR. ANDERSON:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  --  So I

         14  appreciate your efforts to get here as well.

         15                 First Mr. Spencer, you brought up an

         16  issue similar to Mr. Anderson, that's the amount of

         17  discretion.  Obviously you heard my questioning to

         18  DCAS?  I am very concerned about that. That is

         19  something, bless you, that is something that we're

         20  going to have to work on.  Whenever there is an

         21  element of discretion in the hiring process there is

         22  a problem, an element of a problem so we will work

         23  on that.  Also, Mr. Spencer, in your testimony you

         24  mention the smallest and the largest, again that is

         25  a concern of ours as well, especially those on the
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          2  small list.  And I also want to note at this point

          3  that in any of our hearings, the protocol is we have

          4  the City agency come forward and they speak and then

          5  they leave and then witnesses come forward and

          6  normally it may not be heard by the Administration,

          7  but I did request it and I thank DCAS for remaining

          8  in the room, Jennifer McBetty (phonetic) here from

          9  DCAS is in the room, so again I want to thank them

         10  for remaining and hearing subsequent issues that

         11  come up.  So this will be a conversation that we

         12  will have with DCAS.  So again, you heard DCAS's

         13  testimony, generally gentlemen, what did you

         14  believe, what did you think?  Do you think there's

         15  good efforts and intentions here?  A lot of work to

         16  be done?  What's your opinion of DCAS's testimony?

         17                 MR. ANDERSON:  If DCAS were more

         18  transparent and easier to talk to I would have a

         19  better idea of how I could evaluate the question.

         20  The truth of the matter is, I can only see that the

         21  agencies frequently do not respond to what DCAS says

         22  it is doing, and that the actions of the agencies as

         23  witness the quarterly provisional report and others

         24  are really not checked by anyone.  I can accept the

         25  idea that they don't have the statutory rights to go
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          2  in there on an agency, but I also do believe that

          3  they do have some influence on the piece and they

          4  certainly do see the abuses that go on because

          5  ultimately they have to approve the amount of

          6  transfers between titles and other jockeying around

          7  that has to get done in order to protect

          8  provisionals each time the agency starts skipping

          9  through a list and so I cannot believe that they are

         10  not as aware as this Committee is of the number and

         11  types of the abuses.  I really wonder about why they

         12  are not asking for more authority to step in an

         13  egregious cases at least, and certainly take some

         14  kind of lead in getting the agencies to understand

         15  the need for civil service.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You, Mr.

         17  Anderson, have touched upon something that was a

         18  little frustrating to me as well, the authoritative

         19  nature of DCAS.  Are you saying that it would be

         20  your hope that possibly in the future DCAS would be

         21  given more authority over these agencies as they

         22  stray away from the process?

         23                 MR. ANDERSON:  I think it would be

         24  natural if DCAS had some oversight in terms of civil

         25  service.  Somebody has to, Mr. Chairman.  Somebody
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          2  has to take some oversight.  It seems to me that its

          3  impractical for City Council to micromanage on that

          4  level, much as I would prefer a more democratic

          5  process.  So, by default it would come to DCAS.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I tend to

          7  agree.  I tend to agree.  There being no questions

          8  from my colleagues, gentlemen I want to thank you

          9  for your time and testimony today.

         10                 MR. SPENCER:  Thank you.

         11                 MR. ANDERSON:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you.

         13                 Our next panel, a panel of two, we

         14  have Michael Brandon, from Local 333 I.L.A., and

         15  Juan Fernandez, President of Local 154 of DC37.

         16                 Gentlemen thank you for being here

         17  today, and please state your name and give your

         18  testimony please.

         19                 MR. BRANDON:  I'm Michael Brandon,

         20  I'm Executive Board Member of Local 333 of the

         21  International Long Shoremen's Association.  We

         22  represent 2,600 workers in the maritime industry,

         23  which 300 of them are civil servants down at the

         24  Staten Island Ferry.

         25                 Okay, first I want to thank you Chair
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          2  Addabbo and everybody on the Committee here for

          3  inviting me here today.  I know the last time we

          4  talked about a year ago, the deckhands test from

          5  DCAS 4028, the agency deemed it was exhausted and

          6  with your help it was opened up again.  There again,

          7  there was 184 on the list, they only hired 106 or

          8  108 that were already there, and many people, like a

          9  lot of my men were out at sea, you know we go away

         10  for weeks and months at a time, and they were never

         11  informed or even given a letter, many of them

         12  weren't that they even passed the test, so the way

         13  the agency or DCAS informs them is not, I don't

         14  believe the right way.  And like I said, especially

         15  when people are away on the ocean for a month at a

         16  time and they can't make it to the interview and

         17  they just bypass them and then they hire

         18  provisionally when there's an active list and then

         19  all of a sudden a guy comes off the list.  I just

         20  don't understand it.  The Department of

         21  Transportation the way they do things.  Case in

         22  point, was this weeks Chief, there's three openings

         23  for marine oiler, which a test was given in 2003.

         24  Marine oiler test number 2081. These three people

         25  that were put into the chief, I haven't looked into
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          2  it, I'll have to look into it further, but they

          3  basically resigned from City service and went

          4  elsewhere, but they put them on that list.  I just

          5  want to know if they're doing this just to kill the

          6  list, you know, just to kill the list because I

          7  don't think these people are coming back, but those

          8  three names are on that list.  And you know, maybe

          9  there has to be questions asked on that.  And I'm

         10  very surprised that DCAS would, you know, Staten

         11  Island Ferry, you know we provide service for 70,000

         12  people a day, crucial community of interest with

         13  people on Staten Island, and for DCAS to say we're

         14  not going to make tests because it's not a priority,

         15  I'm shocked by that statement.  And the case in

         16  point is the Staten Island Ferry terminal

         17  supervisors.  There's only two permanent ones left

         18  and everybody else is provisional.  And we're coming

         19  up to contract negotiations and they have the upper

         20  hand with these provisionals because they can say

         21  hey we want a longer workday and we want this, we

         22  want that, and they're not making a test.  There

         23  hasn't been a test in 11 years, and every year we

         24  write to them to make a test and it never happens

         25  and it's just manipulation of who they handpick to
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          2  be a ferry terminal supervisor and full control of

          3  the management of the ferry.  There has to be civil

          4  service tests more often.  The last deckhands test

          5  was 10, 11 years ago.  Marine oiler, 2003, but the

          6  one before that was 13 years ago.  And there was a

          7  thing about Marine Engineer, that's me, but there

          8  again you have provisional marine engineers or

          9  provisional marines in direct line of promotion and

         10  they don't make the test.  These guys are

         11  provisional for years.  And if they don't like you

         12  they just bump you back down to an oiler.  You know

         13  it's a lot of power they hold over you and it's

         14  wrong.

         15                 And me and Jack Sanford, he's also an

         16  Executive Board Member and he is a Ferry Terminal

         17  Supervisor at the Staten Island Ferry, where there

         18  hasn't been a test for 11 years and we wrote this

         19  up.  I'd like to read it.

         20                 The importance of preserving and even

         21  strengthening the Civil Service System whether for

         22  entrance level positions or promotional positions is

         23  to prevent the corruption of the Civil Service

         24  System to political patronage or abuse by over

         25  zealous management.
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          2                 The Laws enacted and redefined over

          3  many years were designed to create a level playing

          4  field where everyone would have an equal opportunity

          5  for employment and advancement.

          6                 It also offered protection to

          7  employees from retaliation by abusive managers who

          8  with this consent of the administration from time to

          9  time intentionally stack the deck with provisional

         10  employees.  By not giving a test for an open

         11  position and waiting until the need becomes

         12  critical, creating an emergency hiring of all

         13  provisionals who may be on the payroll for years.

         14                 A case in point is the Ferry Terminal

         15  Supervisors, a list of ten, two of which are

         16  permanent.  The contract is coming up for

         17  negotiation and they're already looking to extend

         18  the workday and they can, you know, and I guess if

         19  the provisionals don't agree with it, maybe they're

         20  going to be in dungarees.  You know what I mean,

         21  that's why the importance, and timing of tests are

         22  so important and with that I want to thank you.

         23                 MR. FERNANDEZ:  Good morning,

         24  Chairman Addabbo and fellow Committee Members.  My

         25  name is Juan Fernandez.  I am the President of Local
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          2  154, District Council 37, AFSCME.  I am here before

          3  you today to share some of the concerns of the

          4  members of Local 154, the workers I represent.

          5  These workers represent the titles of Research

          6  Assistant, Human Rights Specialists, Claims

          7  Specialist, Special Consultants Level II, Public

          8  Records Aide, Title Examiners, Departmental

          9  Librarians and a number of other related titles.

         10  Our members provide professional, technical and

         11  clerical services at over twenty City agencies and

         12  departments. They audit the quality of contractual

         13  services provided by certain community agencies,

         14  they investigate Human Rights complaints, they

         15  analyze data and produce reports, they investigate

         16  claims against the City, and they organize and

         17  classify records, and provide library services,

         18  among other functions.

         19                 Today I would like to present some of

         20  the concerns that my members and I have regarding

         21  the status of the civil Service System in the City

         22  of New York.

         23                 First, City agencies reluctantly use

         24  or sometimes plainly refuse to use established

         25  lists.  For example, the Research Assistant list
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          2  #5053 was established in October 2006 with 598 names

          3  in it.  The Research Assistant is a Citywide title

          4  used by no less than 15 agencies.  However, to date

          5  less than 20 people have been appointed from this

          6  list.

          7                 Second, members report that the tests

          8  do not properly reflect the nature of the jobs and

          9  that after taking the test, once their names are

         10  placed on the list, they are not called. This is a

         11  waste of time, money, and effort as well as a loss

         12  of morale for these.

         13                 Third, once a list has been

         14  established, some managers use it as an opportunity

         15  to retaliate against provisional workers.  We are

         16  plenty aware that the Civil Service Law requires

         17  removal of provisional workers shortly after a list

         18  has been established.  However, we have seen

         19  managers remove provisional workers whose names are

         20  high on the list and who never had a bad evaluation

         21  but who happened to step on the wrong toes.  This is

         22  retaliation under the cover of the Civil Service

         23  System.

         24                 Four, the one- in- three rule allows

         25  managers to refuse promotional opportunities to well
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          2  qualified applicants. Contrary to the well intended

          3  purpose of a system based on merit, fitness and

          4  objective testing, the rule of one- in- three

          5  introduces an element of prejudice in the selection

          6  process.  People with top scores are discarded with

          7  absolutely no explanations.  The current system

          8  allows managers to do the final picking without

          9  regard to the principles behind any merit system.

         10                 These factors show that the current

         11  Civil Service System is no longer a system based on

         12  merit.  The existence of 26,000 provisional City

         13  workers shows that managers have systematically

         14  circumvented the system to bring in workers with no

         15  civil service protections.  In addition, the current

         16  Civil Service System has been unable to deter the

         17  spread of political appointments and cronyism in

         18  city hiring practices.  The excessive number of

         19  managers and deputies in many city agencies,

         20  sometimes people with no substantive previous

         21  experience, demonstrates that public resources and

         22  taxpayers moneys are being wasted to the detriment

         23  of services to the public.

         24                 To ensure that the Civil Service

         25  System is based on merit and thus will protect the
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          2  taxpayers' money and the quality of the services to

          3  the public, we recommend the following:

          4                 First, repeal the one- in- three rule

          5  and enforce a policy that candidates will be

          6  appointed according to their ranking on the civil

          7  service list.

          8                 Second, Ensure that tests should

          9  properly reflect job descriptions.

         10                 Third, establish and enforce a

         11  reasonable timeframe for the entire process, from

         12  examination to appointment.

         13                 Four, require agencies to move lists

         14  promptly.

         15                 And fifth, prohibit the use or misuse

         16  of the Civil Service System as a tool for

         17  retaliation against workers.

         18                 We commend and thank the City Council

         19  for holding this public hearing regarding the Civil

         20  Service System.

         21                 I am available for any answer you may

         22  have.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         24  much Mr. Fernandez.  First Mr. Brandon, thank you

         25  very much, good to see you at this hearing again,
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          2  and I look forward to working with you on your

          3  issues, you know, marine oiler, deckhands, we will

          4  continue to have these conversations and with DCAS

          5  in the room I look forward to working those issues.

          6  Hopefully seeing what we can do to adjust them.  So

          7  yes, thank you, and thank you for your testimony and

          8  for being here again.

          9                 Mr. Fernandez I thank you as well for

         10  being here. Mr. Fernandez, a quick question, how

         11  many members do you represent in Local 154?

         12                 MR. FERNANDEZ:  I represent 900

         13  members.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Nine hundred.

         15                 MR. FERNANDEZ:  Nine hundred

         16  throughout almost every City agency.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Again, thank

         18  them for their work.  I also thank you for your

         19  recommendations.  It is sometimes easy to point out

         20  the problems, but to give recommendations, we

         21  appreciate that and we will forward obviously your

         22  concerns as others today to DCAS and see what ever

         23  response we get, we will let you know.  So again I

         24  appreciate that and gentlemen I appreciate your

         25  time.
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          2                 Any questions from my colleagues?

          3                 Gentlemen, thank you very much today.

          4                 MR. BRANDON:  Thank you.

          5                 MR. FERNANDEZ:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And just for

          7  the record I will say that DC 37 did give testimony

          8  to be put into the record today regarding their

          9  position on the one- in- three rule and that will be

         10  made part of the record.  And the last witness to

         11  give testimony today is Mr. Jon Forster, from Local

         12  375.

         13                 MR. FORSTER:  Good morning and sorry

         14  to prolong this a little bit longer, but good to see

         15  all of you and thank you for taking the extra time

         16  so I can put in a few words.  And one of the reasons

         17  I do want to say something is that I think that

         18  Local 375 in some ways -- I'm John Forster, I'm the

         19  First Vice President of Local 375 of DC37 and we

         20  represent approximately 6,800 engineers, architects,

         21  construction project managers and a variety of

         22  technical titles.  We're also somewhat unique in the

         23  sense that our local has so many titles.  I mean in

         24  total with the levels we're probably talking

         25  something like 220.  One of the results of that is
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          2  of course that we haven't had tests for some of our

          3  titles for as much as 15 to 20 years.  That is a

          4  real problem and we continually petition DCAS for

          5  these tests and if we can get six or seven in a year

          6  we're doing well, but when you figure that over 220

          7  titles you're going to miss some titles for a very

          8  long time.  So I think one of the things that has to

          9  happen is we've got to look at a way where DCAS can

         10  in fact streamline it's testing processes.  It's a

         11  tremendously cumbersome process.  We've got to try

         12  to come up with something, possibly electronic

         13  testing and electronic marking so things can be done

         14  much more quickly, but just right now it's just a

         15  logistical impossibility for DCAS to in fact give

         16  all the tests that are necessary, so that is one

         17  problem.

         18                 We too in Local 375 have experience

         19  the problems of lists not being called.  The

         20  Associate Project Manager list recently, the

         21  Construction Project Manager list.  Neither of those

         22  lists were called in their entirety.  We have

         23  certain departments that are notorious for never

         24  calling lists, the Parks Department high among them.

         25    So that is certainly a problem.
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          2                 We also have experienced the same

          3  problems as noted before whereby people are in fact,

          4  through the three- in- one process skipped over and

          5  that continues to be a problem.

          6                 However, I just also want to say that

          7  our titles are so broadbased, we have an Associate

          8  Project Manager could be inspecting the Upstate

          9  Watershed, they could be designing playgrounds in

         10  the Parks Department and they could be overseeing

         11  construction projects on water and sewer lines any

         12  place in the City.  It's very hard to create a test

         13  that adequately assess the skills that are needed

         14  for all those various jobs.  And I think this raises

         15  a problem for us because when tests are in fact

         16  administered, it doesn't necessarily end up with

         17  people being ranked as per their real abilities and,

         18  therefore, we believe that there is some flexibility

         19  that frankly is needed in the calling of the list.

         20  I would agree with my colleagues that three- in- one

         21  has been a problem, it has been used time and time

         22  again by management in a way to skip over people and

         23  skip them deliberately and I would also suggest that

         24  we should have an appeals process.  I believe that

         25  that would be very very important.  We have too many
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          2  people that have sat on lists and never get called

          3  and don't know why and feel that they should.  So I

          4  think an appeals process is terribly important, but

          5  I think we need to look very carefully at how we

          6  approach the one- in- three overall because as I say

          7  I think there is, because the tests don't

          8  necessarily test everybody and everybody actually

          9  ends up getting ranked exactly according to their

         10  ability, I think there needs to be some flexibility

         11  in terms of how those names will be called off the

         12  list.  So I think there's more to be investigated

         13  here and more to be studied and I frankly would like

         14  to come back with some additional suggestions but

         15  certainly the appeals process is one that is very

         16  important.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, Mr.

         19  Forster.  How many members Local 375?

         20                 MR. FORSTER:  Six thousand eight

         21  hundred.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That all?

         23                 MR. FORSTER:  For the moment, we're

         24  working on it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I appreciate
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          2  your concerns. I'm going to request if you can after

          3  this hearing, print up if you can your written

          4  concerns, submit them to me, so we can again submit

          5  them to Commissioner Hirst and work on them over the

          6  next couple of weeks and months.  We will be having

          7  subsequent hearings and I mentioned before you got

          8  here regarding test centers, frequency of exams,

          9  that's going to probably be an agenda item for a

         10  future hearing at this Committee so you will have

         11  the opportunity to get the updates at that time and

         12  hopefully they're positive updates.  So if you could

         13  submit your written concerns I would appreciate it.

         14                 MR. FORSTER:  Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  The issues you

         16  brought up, issues shared by many.  You know the

         17  frequency of the exams, obviously the lists

         18  themselves and adherence to calling from the list,

         19  so these are the issues that we will be working on

         20  for the next couple of months and again hopefully at

         21  a hearing in the future we can have some positive

         22  updates.

         23                 MR. FORSTER:  Great.  Thank you very

         24  much.  I appreciate it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very
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          2  much Mr. Forster.  Mr. Foster being the last to give

          3  testimony I want to thank all for being here today.

          4  We're optimistic obviously in the direction that

          5  we're going but there's a lot of work to do and

          6  again I appreciate everyone's testimony and the

          7  efforts of DCAS as we work toward adjusting these

          8  issues.  Thank you very much for remaining in the

          9  room.  Ladies and Gentlemen have a happy and safe

         10  summer.  Meeting adjourned.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 11:30 a.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, SUSAN MILNER, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 29th day of June 2007.
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          9            I, SUSAN MILNER, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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